
Dawson City Arts Society

Thursday, June 27, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.

KIAC Ballroom at Dënäkär Zho and online (Zoom)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 

1. Welcome & Introductions 

2. Approval of 2024 AGM Agenda

3. Approval of 2023 AGM Minutes

4. Annual Operations and Programming Reports

5. Financial Statement Approval & Appointment of Accountants

6. Strategic Updates

a. President Intro

b. Dënäkär Zho Renovations

c. Staff Restructuring 

d. Artist in Residency Program Future Visions

e. Reconciliation & Equity

f. Leadership Structure Update

g. Programming Committees

h. 25th Anniversary Update

i. Questions from the floor / Community Survey

7. BIO BREAK

8. Appointment of the ODD Gallery / Artist in Residency Committee 



9. Special Resolutions 

a. Motion to amend DCAS Bylaws: Section 3.5 Quorum for General Meetings from 

“A quorum for the transaction of business at a General Meeting is the greater of 

three members or 25% of the members” to “A quorum for the transaction of 

business at a General Meeting is the greater of three members or 15% of the 

members”.

b. Motion to amend DCAS Bylaw 4.5 Terms from: “The Directors are elected at each 

annual General Meeting. A Director’s term of office ends at the close of the next 

annual General Meeting after the Director’s election” to “The Directors are 

elected at each annual General Meeting. Directors’ terms of office shall be two 

years ending at the close of the annual general meeting.”

c. Motion to amend DCAS Bylaw 4.5 Terms to remove “No Director may serve as a 

Director for more than eight consecutive years.”

10. Board of Director Elections

11. Voice of the Membership

12. Adjournment of Meeting



DRAFT

Dawson City Arts Society

Monday, June 26, 2023, at 5:30 p.m.

KIAC Ballroom at Dënäkär Zho and online (Zoom)

ANNUAL MEMBERS’ MEETING AGENDA 

(see below for minutes)

1. Welcome & Introductions

2.  Approval of Agenda & 2022 AGM Minutes

3. Year in Review

4. Financial Reports & Appointment of Accountants

5. Coming Up:
a. Dënäkär Zho Renovations
b. Artist Residency Changes
c. Staff Structure Changes

6. Committee Overviews & Board of Director Elections

7. Voice of the Membership



DRAFT

Dawson City Arts Society

Wednesday, June 26, 2023, at 5:30 p.m.

KIAC Ballroom at Dënäkär Zho and Online (Zoom)

ANNUAL MEMBERS’ MEETING MINUTES
Minute taker: Noelle Palmer, Office Administrator

In Attendance:
Board: Peter Menzies (President), Blackbird L’Hirondelle (Secretary/Treasurer; 
Late), Justin Apperley (Director), Lue Maxwell (Director), Lana Welchman 
(Director), Valerie Williams (Director; via Zoom)

KIAC Staff: Capp Larsen (Operations Director), Sol Suarez Martinez (Culture 
Quest Fund Administrator/YRAF Coordinator), Noelle Palmer (Office 
Administrator), Arcane Perry (Events & Programs Assistant), Tara Rudnickas 
(ODD Gallery Director), Matt Sarty (Performing Arts & Events Producer)

Members: Amy Ball, Andy Cunningham (KVA), Dan Davidson, Betty Davidson, 
Jason de Haan, Kayla Gagné, Lulu Keating, Jasmina Majcenic, Corbin Murdoch 
(DCMF), Aubyn O’Grady, Amira Strain, Marie Spina, Mike Erwood

1. Welcome & Introductions

Peter Menzies, meeting chair, called the meeting to order at 5:55 p.m.

Peter Menzies highlighted that KIAC has been operating for 24 years. He 
acknowledged the over 100 event posters from the 2022-23 fiscal year on display.

Capp Larsen reviewed the colonial history of the KIAC building, highlighting the 
importance of strengthening ties with Tr’ondëk Hwëch’in and the gifting of the 
building’s Hän name, Dënäkär Zho, which means a house of mixed colours.

Capp Larsen provided an update regarding current, outgoing, and future KIAC staff.

Noelle Palmer, new Office Administrator, introduced herself.

Danielle Bossio, new Programs Manager, introduced herself.



DRAFT

Arcane Perry, new Events & Programs Assistant and future Programs Manager, 
introduced themself.

Adonika Clark, not in attendance, is the new Artist-in-Residency Coordinator.

2. Approval of Agenda & 2022 AGM Minutes

Resolution: Moved by Justin Apperley Seconded by Amy Ball
That the agenda be approved as presented.

Blackbird L’Hirondelle (Board Secretary/Treasurer) arrived at 6:05 p.m.

Resolution: Moved by Justin Apperley Seconded by Corbin Murdoch 
That the 2022 Annual General Meeting minutes be accepted as presented.

3. Year in Review
ODD Gallery (Tara Rudnickas)

● The wide variety of exhibits and activities at the ODD Gallery attracted 2,946 
attendees over the 2022-23 year.

● The ODD Gallery Mentorship Project paired local artists with non-local 
artist-mentees who have a connection with the Dawson City community.

● The ODD Gallery is seeking local writers for commissioned exhibition texts.

Education, Outreach & Programs (Capp Larsen on behalf of Devon Berquist)
● Over 1,000 participants took part in KIAC and KIAC-partnered programs 

during the 2022-23 year.
● 2023 saw the return of a full Youth Art Enrichment program with 24 

participants.
● AGM attendees were invited to use the feedback display to provide input.

Performing Arts (Matt Sarty)
● A record 50 performances took place over the 2022-23 year.
● KIAC was able to access additional funding this year through the Canada 

Arts and Cultural Recovery Program (CACRP).
● KIAC partnered with the Klondike Visitor’s Association (KVA) to co-present 

the Dawson City Summer Concert Series every Friday at noon.
● Performing arts residencies were held during which KIAC provided studio 

space and technical equipment to performers, including for two operas and 
local community theatre.



DRAFT

● Future goals involve formalizing a structure to foster collaboration within the 
performing arts community by using KIAC’s infrastructure and resources to 
support local artists.

● An advisory Performing Arts Committee is being reinstated with the aim of 
increasing KIAC’s connection with the community and awareness of its 
preferences.

Yukon Riverside Arts Festival (YRAF) 2022 (Sol Suarez Martinez)
● In 2022, YRAF was held in June instead of August for the first time.
● The relaxing of Covid-19 restrictions allowed YRAF’s previous format to be 

reinstated, including demonstration tents, physical installations and the 
gallery hop.

● Funding in 2022 was boosted by the increased funding in 2020 and 2021 and 
through an increase in sponsorships.

● In accordance with the terms of the DCAS partnership agreement with Parks 
Canada (Klondike National Historic Sites [KNHS]), performances and 
exhibitions were held in KNHS historic buildings, including at the S.S. Keno 
(100th anniversary), the Old Post Office and Lowe’s Mortuary.

● There were over 2,500 attendees, principally Yukoners, as well as increased 
volunteer involvement.

General (Capp Larsen)
● Overall, KIAC reached an audience of 10,082.
● There were 281 volunteer roles for a total of 1,463 volunteer hours.
● KIAC contributed $8,506 in in-kind donations to local organizations and paid 

$179,216 to artist and culture industry workers.
● 101 posts were made as part of the online 2023 KIAC Creators Challenge.

Dawson City International Short Film Festival (DCISFF) (Dan Sokolowski, 
Video Presentation)

● The 2022 DCISFF returned to pre-pandemic conditions.
● Despite limited capacity, there was consistent attendance with many visitors 

from outside Dawson City.
● Film screenings were held during the summer.
● The 3rd season of the week-long Dawson Film Lab residency took place.
● The Yukon 48 Film Challenge also occurred in 2022.
● Preparations for 25th DCISFF are underway.
● The DCISFF funders, volunteers and committee were acknowledged.

Artist-in-Residency Program (Dan Sokolowski, Video Presentation)



DRAFT

● All artists previously cancelled due to the pandemic were able to be 
accommodated.

● Applications for next year have been reviewed.
● Macauley House is on the Parks Canada’s asset disposal list, but KIAC is 

committed to offering some version of the Artist-in-Residency program.
● The Artist-in-Residency program is a flagship KIAC program that reaches 

beyond the Yukon.
● Adonika Clark was welcomed as the new program coordinator.

4. Financial Reports & Appointment of Accountants
Capp Larsen provided a financial overview of the 2022-23 fiscal year, highlighting 
that there was over $1 million dollars in revenues and expenses, with a net gain of 
$11,800.
Capp Larsen provided an overview of the 2023-24 budget. Expenses ($872,573) 
are expected to be higher than revenues ($842,102), leading to a deficit of $30,471, 
to be covered by unrestricted funds reserves. She highlighted that core funding 
increases have not matched the rapidly rising inflation rate. She invited attendees to 
review the budget available at the AGM or by email, upon request.
Peter Menzies advised that the Board has signed off on the 2022-23 audit. He noted 
the need to balance future visioning with financial realities. Peter Menzies invited 
questions or a motion from the floor.

Resolution: Moved by Aubyn O’Grady Seconded by Dan Davidson
That the 2022-23 Financial Statements prepared by BDO Chartered 
Accountants of Salmon Arm, B.C., be approved as presented.

Resolution: Moved by Lulu Keating Seconded by Lue Maxwell
That BDO Chartered Accountants of Salmon Arm, B.C., be appointed as 
accountant for the 2023-24 fiscal year.

5. Coming up:
Dënäkär Zho Renovations
Lana Welchman spoke to the limitations of the current space to meet demands. She 
reviewed the steps taken to date, including a 2021 fundraiser to kickstart a 
renovation project, followed by a Request for Proposals, acceptance of the 
Cornerstone Planning Group & Kobayashi + Zedda Architects Ltd proposal, and 
their consultation process and production of a draft report and designs. She 
reviewed the reported current challenges, highlighting the need for an accessible 
space that allows for revenue generation in tandem with programming.



DRAFT

Attendees were invited to review and provide feedback on the draft concept plans at 
the AGM or by joining the Dënäkär Zho Renovations & Accessibility Committee. 
Renovations are expected to be funded through grants, such as through CanNor, or 
for accessibility, as well as accessing some building fund reserves.

Artist Residency Changes
Capp Larsen advised that the Artist-in-Residency program will need to be adapted 
given that Macauley House is on the Parks Canada asset disposal list and the KIAC 
lease ends in 2024. She reviewed potential options for moving forward. If the Yukon 
Government was interested in purchasing the property, KIAC could seek a nominal 
lease of the building; KIAC has shovel-ready plans for a fourplex development 
project, potentially for SOVA student housing, which may make the property 
appealing to YG as a revenue generator. Other potential Parks Canada facilities 
include Ruby’s Place or the 2nd floor of the BNA Bank. Ruby’s Place is unfinished 
inside and would require a significant investment. The BNA Bank would only be able 
to operate seasonally. Other alternatives include sourcing a private rental or hosting 
group residencies. DCAS members were invited to join the Artist-in-Residence 
Future Visions Committee.

Staff Structure Changes
Lana Welchman advised that the previous Executive Director position was no longer 
viable given KIAC’s growth. This role has been split into a 0.8 Operations Director 
position and a 0.8 Director of Development & Fundraising position. Capp Larsen 
has accepted the position of Operations Director. KIAC has recently received 
funding to trial the vacant Director of Development & Fundraising position, which is 
expected to be posted this summer. Lana Welchman is currently on a small contract 
to help bridge this gap.

Lana Welchman encouraged attendees to join the Fundraising, Events & 
Sponsorships Committee to start planning for KIAC’s 25th anniversary on New 
Year’s Eve 2024.

6. Committee Overviews & Board of Director Elections
Tara Rudnickas reviewed the role of the ODD Gallery & Artist-in-Residence 
Committee, whose members are usually determined by vote. The committee usually 
has a two-year term and members are involved in the ODD Gallery and 
Artist-in-Residency selections processes as well as fundraising. She noted that 
there is some overlap with the Artist-in-Residence Future Visions Committee and 
recommended that members consider joining both committees.



DRAFT

Capp Larsen outlined the focus of the seven KIAC committees: Film Festival; 
Fundraising, Events & Sponsorships; ODD Gallery & Artist-in-Residence; 
Artist-in-Residence Future Visions; Yukon Riverside Arts Festival; Dënäkär Zho 
Renovations & Accessibility; and Performing Arts). She noted that the committees 
are small, not generally labour-intensive and work in an advisory capacity to Board 
and staff.
Lana Welchman noted that the Board meets six times a year and is responsible for 
financial and governance matters.
Peter Menzies noted that a second SOVA Governance Council representative is 
being sought to sit alongside David Curtis.

Peter Menzies called for new Board member nominations at 7:09 p.m.

Capp Larsen nominated Lulu Keating to the Board. Lulu Keating declined.

Peter Menzies called a second time for new Board member nominations at 
7:10 p.m.

Kayla Gagné accepted nomination to the Board.
Kayla Gagné nominated Lue Maxwell to the Board. Lue Maxwell declined.

Peter Menzies made a final call for new Board member nominations at 7:11 p.m.

Kayla Gagné nominated Aubyn O’Grady to the Board. Aubyn O’Grady declared a 
conflict of interest.
Amy Ball nominated Marie Spina to the Board. Marie Spina accepted nomination to 
the Board.

2023-24 BOARD MEMBERS (ACCLAIMED)
Returning Members:

1. Peter Menzies
2. Lana Welchman
3. David Curtis
4. Blackbird L’Hirondelle

New Members:
5. Kayla Gagné
6. Marie Spina

Ten individuals have expressed interest in the ODD Gallery & Artist-in-Residence 
Committee. A vote was held, and all were in favour of their election to the 



DRAFT

committee in spirit. They will be contacted to confirm acceptance of their 
nomination to the committee.

7. Voice of the membership
Capp Larsen invited feedback from the floor and also noted that feedback could be 
provided through the forms at the AGM or post-meeting discussions.

Jasmina Majcenic voiced her interest in KIAC pursuing Ruby’s Place.
Justin Apperley stated that a Parks Canada maintenance supervisor had indicated 
to him that Ruby’s Place would be the best scenario for KIAC, with Parks Canada 
being responsible for operations and maintenance of the building.
Aubyn O’Grady pointed out that initial construction costs would be huge.
Capp Larsen noted that roles would need to be clarified with Parks Canada.

Aubyn O’Grady voiced her appreciation for the mentorship program, including the 
relationships, work and discussions that it gave rise to, and she congratulated KIAC 
on its success.
Kayla Gagné stated that she liked the mentorship program.

Peter Menzies noted that the Bechstein piano will be leaving the ballroom the 
following week.
Lana Welchman clarified that the piano belongs to Parks Canada and is not fully 
functional.
Capp Larsen noted that a new stage will be installed in the ballroom.
Peter Menzies stated that he hopes the piano will be put on display at the 
Transportation Museum in Whitehorse.

The meeting adjourned at 7: 19 p.m. 



Dawson City Arts Society
Client Information Package
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Contact Information

Angie Spencer, CPA, CA
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Ph:  250-832-7171  Fax:  250-832-2429
Email:  aspencer@bdo.caDraf

t



Dawson City Arts Society
Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unaudited)

Contents

Independent Practitioner's Review Engagement Report 1 - 2

Financial Statements

Statement of Financial Position 3

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 4

Statement of Operations 5

Statement of Cash Flows 6

Notes to Financial Statements 7 - 14

Schedules 15 - 16Draf
t



Tel: 250-832-7171
Fax: 250-832-2429
Toll-free: 1-800-279-3658
www.bdo.ca

BDO Canada LLP
571 6th St NE #201
Salmon Arm, BC V1E 1R6

 Independent Practitioner's Review Engagement Report

To the board of directors of Dawson City Arts Society

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Dawson City Arts Society that
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2024, and the statements of
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Practitioner’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements based on
our review. We conducted our review in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
standards for review engagements, which require us to comply with relevant ethical
requirements.

A review of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for
review engagements is a limited assurance engagement. The practitioner performs procedures,
primarily consisting of making inquiries of management and others within the entity, as
appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, and evaluates the evidence obtained.

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less in extent than, and vary in nature
from, those performed in an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on these financial
statements.

Basis for Qualified Conclusion

In common with many not-for-profit organizations, Dawson City Arts Society derives revenue
from fundraising activities, donations, and in-kind donations, the completeness of which is not
susceptible to us obtaining evidence we considered necessary for the purpose of the review.
Accordingly, the evidence obtained of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in
the records of Dawson City Arts Society. Therefore, we were not able to determine whether
any adjustments might be necessary to fundraising revenue, donations, in kind donations,
excess of revenues over expenses, and cash flows from operations for the years ended March
31, 2023 and March 31, 2024, current assets as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024, and net
assets as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024. Our review conclusion on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 was modified accordingly because of the
possible effects of this limitation in scope.

1
BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

Draf
t



Qualified Conclusion

Based on our review, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Conclusion paragraph, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Dawson City Arts Society as at March 31, 2024, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations.

Chartered Professional Accountants

Salmon Arm, British Columbia
TBD

2
BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Statement of Financial Position

(Unaudited)

 March 31 2024 2023

Assets

Current
Cash $ 46,746 $ 82,018
Short term investments (Note 2) 14,328 46,920
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 249,776 161,595
Inventory (Note 4) 6,527 6,527
Prepaid expenses 530 7,025

317,907 304,085

Tangible capital assets (Note 5) 879,398 827,070

$ 1,197,305 $ 1,131,155

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 67,995 $ 26,510
Deferred revenue & other long term liabilities (Note 6) 51,549 79,433
Current portion of deferred capital contributions (Note 7) 18,585 10,510

138,129 116,453

Deferred capital contributions (Note 7) 180,212 110,796

318,341 227,249

Net Assets
Invested in tangible capital assets 682,106 707,270
Internally restricted 20,070 -
Unrestricted 176,788 196,636

878,964 903,906

$ 1,197,305 $ 1,131,155

 On behalf of the Board:

Director Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

(Unaudited)

For the year ended March 31
Invested in tangible

capital assets
Internally

Restricted Unrestricted
2024
Total

2023
Total

Balance, beginning of the year $ 707,270 $ - $ 196,636 $ 903,906 $ 1,003,861

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses (44,002) - 19,060 (24,942) (99,955)

Investment in tangible capital
assets 112,130 - (112,130) - -

Deferred capital contributions (93,292) - 93,292 - -

Inter-fund transfer - 20,070 (20,070) - -

Balance, end of the year $ 682,106 $ 20,070 $ 176,788 $ 878,964 $ 903,906

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Statement of Operations

(Unaudited)

For the year ended March 31 2024 2023

Revenue
Amortization of deferred contributions $ 15,801 $ 12,531
Course tuition and materials 4,696 12,329
Donation - general 61,058 48,656
Federal grants (Schedule 2) 209,887 241,984
Fundraising 37,246 29,193
Gallery sales 1,035 690
Interest income 2,408 284
Membership and registrations 2,630 2,677
Municipal grants (Schedule 2) 9,100 3,000
Other grants (Schedule 2) 2,512 3,658
Other income 1,820 2,455
Programs 63,468 238,085
Rental 7,316 6,561
Yukon Government grants (Schedule 2) 539,386 479,142

958,363 1,081,245

Expenses
Advertising and promotion 5,314 5,103
Amortization 59,803 124,294
Bank charges 2,461 5,341
Bookkeeping 34,872 30,276
Course materials 7,758 8,896
Dues and memberships 1,507 2,740
Fundraising 20,329 14,252
Insurance 24,925 40,996
Office 10,939 9,807
Other operating 9,595 6,752
Professional fees 18,408 10,049
Property taxes 17,449 16,633
Repairs and maintenance 35,062 41,291
Sales related expenses 840 385
Special programs 556,482 700,938
Travel, training and meetings 1,753 5,916
Utilities 39,321 57,570
Wages and benefits 136,487 99,961

983,305 1,181,200

Deficiency of revenues over expenses $ (24,942) $ (99,955)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Statement of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)

For the year ended March 31 2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers $ 63,203 $ 305,771
Cash receipts from government grants 760,885 727,784
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (875,522) (1,062,161)
Interest received 2,408 284

(49,026) (28,322)

Cash flows from investing activities
Net change in short term investments 32,592 5,716
Purchase of tangible capital assets (112,130) (7,362)
Capital contribution received 93,292 -

13,754 (1,646)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of capital lease obligation - (2,205)

Net decrease in cash (35,272) (32,173)

Cash, beginning of the year 82,018 114,191

Cash, end of the year $ 46,746 $ 82,018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Notes to Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

March 31, 2024

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Nature and Purpose of
Organization

Dawson City Arts Society (the "Society") is a not-for-profit
organization incorporated without share capital under the laws of
the Yukon Territory. The Society's mandate is to enrich the social,
cultural and economic well-being of Dawson City and the Yukon
through the advancement of the arts and other cultural
programming.

The Society is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act, and,
as such, is exempt from income tax under section 149(1)(F) and
may issue income tax receipts to donors.

Basis of Accounting The financial statements have been prepared using Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition The Society follows the deferral method of accounting for
contributions.

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in
which the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue when received or
receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Program and service revenues are recognized as programs and
services are rendered, the price is fixed or determinable and
collectibility is reasonably assured.

Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in
net assets.

Restricted net investment income is recognized as revenue in the
year in which the related expenses are incurred. Restricted net
investment income that must be added to the principal amount of
resources held for endowment is recognized as a direct increase
in net assets. Unrestricted net investment income is recognized
as revenue when earned.

Short Term Investments Short term investments are stated at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recorded through the statement of operations.

Inventory Inventory includes 7.5 ounces of raw gold that have been
contributed to the Society. Contributed inventory is recorded at
its fair value at the date of contribution.

7

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Notes to Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

March 31, 2024

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Tangible Capital Assets Tangible capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair
value at the date of contribution, unless fair value is not
determinable in which case contributed capital assets are
recorded at nominal value at the date of contribution.
Contributed capital assets are subsequently amortized.
Betterments that extend the useful life of the asset are
capitalized.

Amortization is calculated based on the estimated useful life of
the asset as follows:

Method Rate
Building Declining balance 4%
Fixtures and equipment Declining balance 20%
Library and collections Declining balance 20%
Computer equipment Declining balance 30%
Leasehold improvements Straight-line 16-19 years

When a capital asset is disposed of, the difference between the
net proceeds on disposition and the net carrying amount is
recognized in the statement of operations. Any unamortized
deferred contribution amount related to the capital asset
disposed of is recognized in revenue in the statement of
operations, provided that all restrictions have been complied
with.

Deferred Revenue The Society has entered into agreements where the services to be
performed extends beyond year end. For these agreements, the
Society records an obligation and recognizes revenue over the
period of the agreement as the services are rendered.

Deferred Contributions Deferred contributions related to capital assets are amortized to
revenue on the same basis as the related capital assets.

In-Kind Contributions Contributed assets and materials which are used in the normal
course of the Society's operations and would otherwise have been
purchased are recorded at their fair value at the date of
contribution if fair value can be reasonably estimated.

Contributed Services Volunteers contribute many hours per year to assist the Society in
carrying out its activities. Due to the difficulty of determining
their fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the
financial statements.

8

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Notes to Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

March 31, 2024

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments Financial Instruments are recorded at fair value at initial
recognition.

In subsequent periods, equities traded in an active market are
reported at fair value, with any change in fair value reported in
income. All other financial instruments are reported at cost or
amortized cost less impairment. Transaction costs on the
acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are expensed for
those items measured at fair value and charged to the financial
instrument for those measured at amortized cost.

Financial assets are tested for impairment when indicators of
impairment exist. When a significant change in the expected
timing or amount of the future cash flows of the financial asset is
identified, the carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
and the amount of the write-down is recognized in net income. A
previously recognized impairment loss may be reversed to the
extent of the improvement, provided it is not greater than the
amount that would have been reported at the date of the
reversal had the impairment not been recognized previously, and
the amount of the reversal is recognized in net income.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future. Significant estimates
include the useful life of capital assets and completeness of
accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

9

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Notes to Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

March 31, 2024

2. Short Term Investments

The investment consists of 1,433 units (2023 - 4,692) of CIBC Canadian T-Bill Fund Premium
Class held with CIBC Securities Inc. with a market value of $14,328 ( 2023 - $46,920).  It is
quoted in an active market and this amount represents the fair value of the investment.
These funds earn a 4.70% (2023 - 2.81%) return.

Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation ("CDIC") protects eligible deposits at member
institutions to a maximum of $100,000 of eligible deposits at member financial institutions
in case of their failure. CIBC Securities Inc. is not a member of the CDIC and so funds are
not insured. There has been no change in the risk of this investment from prior years.

3. Accounts Receivable

2024 2023

Grants receivable $ 242,319 $ 159,261
GST 1,892 1,933
Trade 5,565 401

$ 249,776 $ 161,595

4. Inventory

Inventory consists 7.5 ounces of raw gold and is recorded at the value when it was received
of $6,527. There has been no impairment on the value of the inventory.

10

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Notes to Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

March 31, 2024

5. Tangible Capital Assets

2024 2023

Cost
Accumulated
Amortization Cost

Accumulated
Amortization

Fixtures and equipment $ 426,779 $ 329,044 $ 379,480 $ 304,611
Building 1,412,947 639,036 1,348,366 606,790
Leasehold improvements 1,648,458 1,648,456 1,648,458 1,648,457
Library 4,063 4,018 4,063 4,007
Collections 3,994 2,917 3,744 2,646
Computer equipment 75,856 69,228 75,856 66,386

$ 3,572,097 $ 2,692,699 $ 3,459,967 $ 2,632,897

Net book value $ 879,398 $ 827,070

11

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Notes to Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

March 31, 2024

6. Deferred Revenue and Other Long Term Liabilities

Deferred revenue represents funding received in the current period that is related to
expenses of a subsequent period. Donations and fundraising were allocated to the
reservation fund as they relate to a fundraising campaign with all proceeds designated for
future expenses related to the Society's building. Changes in deferred revenue balances
and the reservation fund are as follows:

March
 31, 2023

Funding
Received

Transfer to
capital

contributions
Revenue

Recognized
March

31, 2024

Federal Grants
Community

Foundation of
Canada $ - $ 19,588 $ - $ - $ 19,588

Heritage Canada - 2,900 - - 2,900
Telefilm Canada 12,500 - - 12,500 -

12,500 22,488 - 12,500 22,488

Yukon Government
Grants

Yukon Community
Development
Fund 19,585 - 19,585 - -

Yukon Volunteer
Society - 4,489 - - 4,489

19,585 4,489 19,585 - 4,489

Other Deferred
Funds

Art Festival June
2024 - 2,288 - - 2,288
Building

Reservation
Fund 41,034 - 24,364 - 16,670

DC General Store
Donation - 500 - - 500

Performing Arts 6,314 - - 1,200 5,114

47,348 2,788 24,364 1,200 24,572

$ 79,433 $ 29,765 $ 43,949 $ 13,700 $ 51,549

12

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Notes to Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

March 31, 2024

7. Deferred Contributions Related to Capital Assets

Deferred contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized portion of
contributed capital assets and restricted contributions used to purchase capital assets.
The changes in the deferred contributions balance for the period are as follows:

2024 2023

Beginning balance $ 121,306 $ 133,837
Add: restricted contributions related to capital assets 93,292 -
Less: amounts amortized to revenue (15,801) (12,531)

$ 198,797 $ 121,306
Less: current portion (18,585) (10,510)

Ending Balance $ 180,212 $ 110,796

8. Economic Dependence

Approximately 80% (2023 - 67%) of the society's funding recorded as revenue is derived
from government grants. Should this funding be substantially curtailed, the ongoing
viability of the society would be significantly affected.

9. Commitments

The society has entered into a lease with the Yukon Government to rent the old liquor
store building until 2043. The lease is payable on the first day of each year and is valued at
$1 per year.

10. Financial Instruments

The Society is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial instruments. This note
describes the Society's objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks.

There have been no substantive changes in the Society's exposure to financial instruments
risks or its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks from previous
periods unless otherwise stated in this note.

13

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Notes to Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

March 31, 2024

10. Financial Instruments (continued)

General Objectives, Policies, and Processes

Principal Financial Instruments

The principal financial instruments used by the Society, from which financial instrument
risk arises, are as follows:
 short-term investments;
 accounts payable and accrued liabilities;
 inventory

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Society's risk management
objectives and policies and, while retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has
delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective
implementation of the objectives and policies to the Society's administration function. The
Board receives financial statements through which it reviews the effectiveness of the
processes put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets. The
overall objective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible
without unduly affecting the Society's competitiveness and flexibility. Further details
regarding these policies are set out below.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The Society is exposed to credit risk
principally from accounts receivable. A significant portion of the Society's accounts
receivable is from low risk government entities and so exposure is limited.  This risk has
not changed from the prior period.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. It is the risk that the counterpart fails to discharge its
obligation in this respect of the instrument. The Society manages liquidity risk through
policy to ensure that they will have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when
they become due. The Society holds temporary investments in CIBC Securities funds.
Amounts are transferred to/from the cash account as required to meet its financial
obligations.

14

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Schedule 1 - Operating Activities

(Unaudited)

For the year ended March 31 2024 2023

Revenue
Course tuition and materials $ 4,696 $ 12,329
Donation - general 61,058 48,656
Fundraising 37,246 29,193
Gallery sales 1,035 690
Interest 2,408 284
Membership and registrations 2,630 2,677
Other income 1,820 2,455
Programs 63,468 238,085
Rental 7,316 6,561
Federal grants 209,887 241,984
Yukon Government grants 539,386 479,142
Municipal grants 9,100 3,000
Other grants 2,512 3,658

942,562 1,068,714

Expenses
Advertising and promotion 5,314 5,103
Bank charges 2,461 5,341
Bookkeeping 34,872 30,276
Course materials 7,758 8,896
Dues and memberships 1,507 2,740
Fundraising 20,329 14,252
Insurance 24,925 40,996
Office 10,939 9,807
Other operating 9,595 6,752
Professional fees 18,408 10,049
Property taxes 17,449 16,633
Repairs and maintenance 35,062 41,291
Sales related expenses 840 385
Special programs 556,482 700,938
Travel, training and meetings 1,753 5,916
Utilities 39,321 57,570
Wages and benefits 136,487 99,961

923,502 1,056,906

$ 19,060 $ 11,808

15

Draf
t



Dawson City Arts Society
Schedule 2 - Grant Funding

(Unaudited)

For the year ended March 31 2024 2023

Federal Grants
Canada Arts Presentation Fund $ 20,000 $ 35,000
Canada Arts Presentation Fund - Re-engaging Audiences - 24,000
Canada Council, Core funding 76,500 76,500
Canada Council, COVID relief - 15,300
Canada Summer Jobs 8,012 -
Canadian Heritage CACRP - 36,000
Community Foundation of Canada 40,412 -
Cultural Human Resources Council 13,463 4,390
Grant-Digital Skills for Youth - 10,794
Heritage Canada: Building Communities Through Arts and

Heritage 29,000 30,000
Telefilm Canada 22,500 10,000

$ 209,887 $ 241,984

Yukon Government grants
Yukon Culture Quest $ 5,000 $ -
Youth Developmental Asset Program 23,500 26,388
Yukon Every Student Every Day 2,000 -
Yukon Food Literacy 4,550 -
Yukon Government, Core funding 459,000 450,000
Yukon Media Development 12,836 2,754
Yukon School of Visual Arts Housing Feasibility 20,000 -
Yukon Youth Roots Funding 5,000 -
Yukon 125 Fund 7,500 -

$ 539,386 $ 479,142

Municipal grants
Community grants $ 9,100 $ 3,000

Other grants
Association Franco-Yukonnaise $ 2,012 $ -
Klondike Visitors Association - 2,000
Klondike Train Fund - 1,658
Mass Culture DNA 500 -

$ 2,512 $ 3,658

16

Draf
t


